
1

THESE MINUTES ARE PRESENTED IN DRAFT FORM AND HAVE NOT
BEEN FORMALLY APPROVED BY THE ENFIELD INLAND WETLANDS AND 

WATERCOURSE AGENCY.  OFFICIAL COPIES OF MINUTES, WHEN APPROVED,
CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE TOWN CLERK OR PLANNING OFFICE.

MINUTES
ENFIELD INLAND WETLANDS AND WATERCOURSES AGENCY

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2016 – 7:00 p.m.
REGULAR MEETING

ENFIELD TOWN HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS (first floor)
820 Enfield Street, Enfield, CT  06082

REGULAR MEETING

1. Call to Order

Chairman Donna Corbin-Sobinski called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Secretary Jane Smith called the roll.

Members Present:  Chairman Donna Corbin-Sobinski, Vice Chairman Elizabeth
Davis, Secretary Jane Smith, Joseph Albert, John Hayes, Robert Chagnon and 
Alternate Kevin Zorda
Also Present: Rick Rachele, Town Inspector and Kim Holden, Interim Assistant
Town Planner
Absent:  Carrie-Anne Wagner-Howe

3. Fire Evacuation Procedures

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski read the Fire Evacuation Notice.

4. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

5. Public Participation - Issues of concern not on the agenda – None



2

6. Correspondence:

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski said she received an e-mail regarding a Vernal Pool
Presentation to be held on Wednesday, June 29, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Town Council Chambers – the presenter is Edward Pawlak and Enfield 
Television will be filming this.

7. Commissioner’s Correspondence (Site Visit Updates – if any) – None

8. Approval of Minutes – April 19, 2016 – Regular Meeting

Secretary Smith said that on page 3, under New Business, the paragraph that 
begins with Vice Chairman Davis speaking about 1699 King Street needs to be
confirmed as to who was speaking.  Secretary Smith said the commission 
would like to have this checked out against the Enfield Television video to 
confirm which commissioner was speaking. (After review of the video, the 
Commissioner that was speaking was Carrie-Anne Howe.)  Secretary Smith 
made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hayes, to approve the minutes 
with the 1 edited note, as discussed.  The motion passed with a 5-0-1 vote.  
Commissioner Albert abstained.

9. Reports of Officers and Committees - None

10. Report of the Director of Planning - None

11. Old Business:

a. 1669 King Street Enforcement:
Mr. Rachele stated that on April 26, 2016, he met with Mark Fontaine, owner 
of 1669 King Street, at the site to inspect the property and also, he took 
photos at that time.  Mr. Rachele said he received an e-mail today containing 
information related to the testing of the materials that were placed onto the 
property and the amount of material dumped there at the time.  Mr. Rachele 
said that Mr. Fontaine was present tonight at the meeting and that he brought
photos with him to show the Commission.  Mr. Rachele said he contacted 
Loomis Chaffee School in Windsor, CT to confirm that site work was done 
there because this is where the stock piles of material came from.  Mr. 
Rachele said he discussed with Mr. Fontaine putting up a silt fence to protect 
wetlands area and said Mr. Fontaine has a bulldozer on the property and he’s 
making plans to remove the material.

Mr. Fontaine addressed the Commission and said he was told to leave the 
material on the property until after the Commission meeting.  Secretary Smith
asked about the new photos showing the silt fence and asked about the straw 



3

and if the site had been seeded.  Mr. Fontaine answered yes.  Mr. Fontaine 
asked the Commission to change the date to May 31, 2016 for everything to 
be completed and for Mr. Rachele to do a final inspection – originally, 
everything was to be done on/after May 15, 2016.  The Commission extended
the date to May 31, 2016.  Mr. Rachele will do a final inspection of the site on 
or about May 31, 2016, to see that the property owner has met all 
conditions/requirements of the Town regarding enforcement of this violation.

Secretary Smith made a motion, seconded by Vice Chairman Davis, to accept 
the property owner at 1699 King Street has met the conditions of the Town’s 
requirements for the enforcement and there’s no further conditions to be 
added and upon removal of the mounds of material and the area brought to 
the grade of the surrounding areas by May 31, 2016, there will be no further 
actions required by this Commission.  The motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote.

12. New Business:
a. 354/356 Hazard Avenue Enforcement:

Mr. Rachele addressed the Commission and said the photos included in their 
packets were taken on April 26, 2016 when he was at the site to meet with 
the owners.  Mr. Rachele said he talked on the phone with the owner’s son, 
Gerald Kranz, on April 26, 2016 to discuss the code violation.  Mr. Rachele 
said the majority of the backyard is in wetlands.  Gerald Kranz was present at 
the meeting and introduced himself to the Commission.  Commissioner Hayes 
asked about the chopping down of the trees and the debris on the property.  
Mr. Kranz said the trees that were cut down on his parent’s property were 
overgrown poison sumac.  Mr. Kranz said the rest of the trees and branches 
fell down during storms.  Mr. Kranz said they left everything on the property 
because they had a Cease and Desist Order.  Commissioner Hayes asked 
wasn’t there a lot of debris on the property like car tires and all sorts of stuff 
and is all this being removed.  Mr. Kranz said there is a car on our property 
but, the rest of the stuff belongs to the neighboring property.

Commissioner Hayes made a motion, seconded by Secretary Smith, to add  
the following requirements to the violation issue at 354/356 Hazard Avenue to
be done/completed:  install staked hay bales at the site to avoid run-off into 
the waterway; then next, have Mr. Rachele do an inspection of the site at the 
end of this week to make sure that requirement is completed; also, by May 
31, 2016, have the rest of the debris removed from site and then have the 
area seeded; then have a final inspection done by Mr. Rachele at the end of 
the month to make sure all requirements have been completed.  The motion 
passed with a 6-0-0 vote.

b. XIW# 16-06 Town of Enfield - Sapphire Street - Reconstruction 
project:



4

Donald Nunes and J.P. Rodriguez, Roads Engineers, Town of Enfield DPW, 
were present at meeting.  Mr. Nunes introduced himself and Mr. Rodriguez to 
the Commission.  Mr. Nunes did a slide-show presentation and stated they will
only be replacing the head wall on the Sapphire Street project.  Mr. Nunes 
said the Town did have to file a U.S. Army Corps Category 1 Permit for this 
project.  Mr. Nunes said the project was originally called Abbe-South but, the 
Town pulled Sapphire Street out of that project.  Mr. Nunes said the project 
will include the following:  replacing the existing head wall because it has 
major cracks in it, taking care of some drainage problems, replacement of the
culvert, redoing the posts and guard rails, sedimentation control and also, the 
Town may need to do slope stabilization.  Mr. Nunes stated they are not 
touching the stream channel or the existing pipe in the culvert – the pipe is in 
good condition.  Mr. Nunes said the pavement on Sapphire Street is in very 
poor condition.  Secretary Smith asked why there is no rip rap or stone at the 
head wall.  Mr. Nunes said the new head wall is designed to prevent flooding.
Mr. Nunes said the work on this project will be performed between July 1 and 
October 1, 2016.

Commissioner Albert made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hayes, to 
approve XIW# 16-06 with the 13 Standard Conditions described in the plans. 
The motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote.

c. XIW# 16-09 Town of Enfield – Elm St., High St., North Main St., 
Palomba Dr., Post Office Rd and Weymouth Rd. -  Reconstruction 
project:

Mr. Rodriguez addressed the Commission to speak about project XIW# 16-09 
which is part of the Town’s Pavement Preservation Project – Year 2.  Mr. 
Rodriguez said this is not a road reconstruction project – it’s a mill and 
overlay project, except for High Street.  Mr. Rodriguez said VHB is the 
consultant in charge of this project.  Mr. Rodriguez said that only High Street 
will be a full road reconstruction project that includes fully reconstructed 
sidewalks; all the rest of the streets will be a mill and overlay; Taylor Road 
will basically be only crack seal.  Mr. Rodriguez did a slide show presentation 
and discussed the following:  Project limits, existing conditions, work locations
and wet soils.
Commissioner Hayes said the plans show that on a couple of these roads, the 
project starts at Route 5 and then ends down the road at a certain point but, 
the road continues on – he asked if the rest of that road will be in the same 
condition as the top.  Commissioner Hayes gave an example using Weymouth 
Road – the project starts at Route 5 and goes down to Pheasant Hill and then 
stops.  Mr. Nunes said that in 2014, all the streets in Enfield were rated 
according to their pavement condition – the report is called PCI (Pavement 



5

Condition Index).  Mr. Nunes said it’s not uncommon to find 4 or 5 sections of 
Weymouth Road with different condition ratings to them.  Alternate Zorda
asked how long a mill and overlay will last.  Mr. Nunes said a straight mill and 
overlay will last 10-15 years.  Secretary Smith asked about the wetlands flags
shown on the plans because she wanted to confirm the need for this project to
be in front of the IWWA Board this evening.  Secretary Smith asked about the
100-year flood boundaries and if this project will be crossing all those 
boundaries.  Mr. Nunes said yes.
Secretary Smith made a motion, seconded by Vice Chairman Davis, to 
approve XIW# 16-09 with the 13 Standard Conditions described in the plans. 
The motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote.

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked Mr. Rachele about the other photos he gave 
to the Commission what location do they represent.  Mr. Rachele said the 
photos are an update on the Alaimo property at 348 Hazard Avenue regarding
excavation and movement of property/material to a brook area.  Mr. Rachele 
said Mr. Alaimo was present at the last IWWA meeting, April 19, 2016, and at 
that time he told the Commission that the property was brought back to the 
condition that it was originally in.  Mr. Rachele said the case is still open until 
the site gets graded, seeded and back to proper condition.  Secretary Smith 
asked if this property is adjacent to the property at 354/356 Hazard Avenue.  
Mr. Rachele said yes, the property is directly to the west.  Secretary Smith 
said the photos do not show any garbage type of debris on the property and 
asked if it was gone and/or not an issue anymore.  Mr. Rachele said the 
mounds of debris are gone but, the site still needs to be graded and seeded.  
Mr. Rachele said a re-inspection of the property will be done to see that 
everything is good regarding this violation.

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked Mr. Rachele if he had an update on 144 and 
146 South Road.  Mr. Rachele said as of today, nothing has been done 
regarding the violation at 144 and 146 South Road – S&R Property, LLC, 
owner.  Commissioner Albert asked Mr. Rachele if the Commission can get the
following document copies included in their next IWWA packets:  The IWWA 
minutes with the conditions of approval and what the owner agreed to; photos
taken pertaining to this violation; and also, the previous Cease and Desist 
Order that was issued.

144 South Road (Map# 055/Lot# 0008) and 146 South Road (Map# 0055-
Lot# 0006), Zone District is BL(Business Local); S&R Property, LLC, Owner 
Code Enforcement:  Dumping Violation.  Commissioner Albert made a motion,
seconded by Commissioner Chagnon, to issue a Cease and Desist Order for a 
dumping violation at 144 and 146 South Rd.  The motion passed with a 6-0-0 
vote.



6

13. New Applications to be Received: - None

14. Adjournment:

Commissioner Albert made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Secretary Smith
The meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m. following a unanimous vote, 6-0-0.

Next regular meeting is Tuesday, June 7, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers.

Minutes prepared by – Pamela J. Schweitzer

Approved by Commission:

____________________
Jane Smith, Secretary


